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PRESS RELEASE

Deputy charged with battery after striking handcuffed subject
 
Seminole Co. Fla., (March 30, 2016) - Seminole County Sheriff Donald F. Eslinger today held a press
conference to discuss an incident involving misconduct by former Deputy Sheriff Michael O’Connor. 
On Jan. 12, O’Connor was disrespectful to a subject arrested for domestic violence, then struck him
once on the face while he was handcuffed and in the back of a patrol car.  The Sheriff’s Office
learned of the incident on March 18 and immediately began investigating.  O’Connor was charged
today with one count of battery, a first degree misdemeanor. 
 
“We have a strong and long-standing relationship with the community we serve, and my
commitment is to always be transparent with, and accountable to, our residents,” said Sheriff
Eslinger.  “O’Connor’s actions were not just a violation of policy and law, they were also contrary to
our agency’s core values.  His behavior was completely inappropriate and totally inconsistent with
what is expected of a deputy sheriff at our agency.”
 
O’Connor was placed on suspension at the onset of the investigation and then submitted his

resignation on March 24th.  He had been employed with the Sheriff’s Office as a deputy assigned to
Seminole Neighborhood Policing (patrol division) since October 2013. 
 

The case will be prosecuted by the Office of the State Attorney, 18th Judicial Circuit.  The Sheriff’s
Office criminal and administrative investigations will be forwarded to the state’s Criminal Justice
Standards and Training Commission which reviews officer misconduct and determines if action
should be taken against a law enforcement officer’s certification.
 
Please do not respond back to this email as the account is not monitored.  For more information
contact:
 
Kim Cannaday (kcannaday@seminolesheriff.org)
(407) 665-6978 - desk
(407) 402-3319 - cell
 
Kristen Bentsen (kbentsen@seminolesheriff.org)
(407) 665-6950 - desk
(407) 637-9210 - cell
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1213 PHILLIP ST, WINTER SPRINGS, FL 32708



DEFENDANT



Height:



Local Address:



Job:



DL#:



Weight: Eyes: Hair:



Race: Sex: DOB: Or Age:



Alcohol Related: Drug Related:



W M 9/19/1990
511 203 BLU BRO Y Y



Phone:               Residence:



Religion:



                         
DL State:   SSN: S 



Citizenship: United States of America



Next of Kin: Relationship: NOK Phone:



Alias Name(s): Person Identifier(s):
NONE   



Co-Defendant(s):



CHARGE(S)



P
C



The undersignted certifieds and swears that he/she has just and reasonable grounds to believe, and does believe that the above named defendant committed the following violation of law:



On the 12 of January, 2016 at 2:05 AM (Specifically include facts constituting cause for arrest.)     |   BOND: NO BOND



P.C. Exists for Charge(s): Judges's Signature: Date:



Weapon Seized:
Arrest Location:



Offense Location:
Arrest Date/Time:



Jail#:



No
1213 PHILLIP ST, WINTER SPRINGS, FL 32708
1213 PHILLIP ST, WINTER SPRINGS, FL 32708
1/12/2016 2:05
201600000406



Weapon Type: HANDS/FEET/FIST



Booked Date/Time:
Local#:



1/12/2016 0:00
        



Jail Date/Time:
FDLE#:



1/12/2016 0:00
          



Fingerprinted:
DOC#:



Y



Court Translator: N Language:



GPS monitored: If not a U.S. citizen, contact embassy consulateN



On January 12, 2016 at approximately 0108 hours, I D/S G. Medina responded to 1213 Phillips St, Winter Springs, Seminole County, 
Florida, in reference to an attempt to contact.



On scene I met with Mr. Daniel Lynch and learned the following: Daniel was asleep in his bedroom and overheard his wife Ms. Karen 
Lynch screaming for help. Daniel exited his bedroom and entered the kitchen. Daniel observed his wife bleeding from her mouth and his 
son Mr. Jonathan Lynch screaming at Karen. Daniel informed both parties that he was going to contact law enforcement, at which time 
both Jonathan and Karen ran out the front door.



Upon my arrival I observed the kitchen chairs knocked over, and a large amount of alcohol spilled on the kitchen ground. I also observed 
a large amount of blood, on the kitchen door handle, consistent with Daniel`s account of the incident. After I spoke with Daniel, I 
canvassed the area for both Karen and Jonathan. I located Karen and Jonathan hiding in an old Jacuzzi located in the rear of the 
residence. They had covered themselves with several patio items in order to conceal themselves.  I identified myself as Deputy Medina 
with the Seminole County Sheriff`s Office, and gave clear concise verbal direction for both subjects to show me their hands. Karen 
complied and placed her hands in the air, while lying in the Jacuzzi. Jonathan did not comply with my direction and continued to try to 
conceal himself with objects that were in the Jacuzzi.  I then had to physically remove several items that Jonathan had positioned on top 
of him. Jonathan continued to refuse my directions to exit the Jacuzzi, and I had to grab hold of his wrist and escort him out of the 
Jacuzzi. I placed Jonathan into wrist restraints, which were double locked, and checked for proper fit. 



Jonathan immediately became aggressive and argumentative. While escorting Jonathan he continued to resist by pulling away from me. 
Jonathan eventually was secured in the rear of my patrol vehicle; however he continued to kick the door of my patrol vehicle. Jonathan 
refused to speak with me in regards to the incident. Jonathan continued to yell at his mother Karen “DON’T TESTIFY AGAINST ME". 
Jonathan then spontaneously uttered “good luck getting my mother to testify against me". I also smelled the impurities of alcohol coming 
from the breath of Jonathan. 



Name Race Sex DOB or Age



Statute# TypeOrdinanceCounts Reason#Attempt/CommitCharge Description



1 784.03   1A1 Probable Cause            
Drug Qty: 0.00



SIMPLE BATTERY DOMESTIC NO BOND No Commit



1 843.02      Probable Cause            



Drug Qty: 0.00



RESISTING AN OFFICER WITHOUT VIOLENCE 
NO BOND



No Commit



Business Address:



Business Phone:               
UNEMPLOYED                         Business Name:



Marital: Place of Birth:   



Name: LYNCH, JONATHAN  



County
NONE GIVEN
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ARREST REPORT



Seminole County Sheriff`s Office



N.S.A: 46 GRID



Agency ORI#: FL0590000 OBTS#: 5902244274



For the Public:



Juvenile:



Agency Report #:



Yes
No
201600000284



Cmty: WLL











see pc.



I made contact with Karen and she stated that she had been in a tussle with her son. Karen refused to speak with me and continuously 
stated “I just want to go home". I again spoke with her husband Daniel and asked what his wife meant by stating I just want to go home. 
He informed me that when Karen makes that statement, she means I want to go home with God. I did observe blood coming from the 
mouth of Karen consistent with be struck. Karen was placed into protective custody Karen did not 
complete the domestic violence paperwork, nor could she inform me if she wanted to prosecute. Karen was provided with her legal 
rights and remedies, and an SAO intake date. 



Based on the injuries I observed on Karen, accompanied with Daniel's sworn statement, I have probable cause to believe that a battery 
occurred between Karen and Daniel. The battery being domestic in nature, and Jonathan being the primary aggressor based on Karen's 
injuries. I also took into consideration Jonathan's spontaneous statements of “DON’T TESTIFY AGAINST ME".



Jonathan was placed into custody for violation of FSS 784.03 Battery Domestic, and violation of FSS 843.02 Resisting an Officer without 
Violence. 



Furthermore I learned that Jonathan is currently on Felony Probation out of Seminole County for Battery on a Law Enforcement Officer. 
A violation of probation report will be completed, due to his new law violations.



Statements made by defendant prior to, during, and after arrest as related to each charge:



ADMINISTRATIVE SECTION



Miranda
Warning



HOLD FOR OTHER AGENCY
Name:



           Reason:



I swear/affirm the above and reversed and attached statements are true and correct. 
Officer's/Complaintant's Signature



 Medina, Giovanni                    107124
 Name(Printed) and Employee#



Verified By:



Sworn to and subscribed before me, the 
undersigned



authority, this _____ day of
___________________,



in the year ____________.



Name/Title of Person Authorized to 
Adminster Oath.



B
O
N
D



I
N
F
O



Date Bond: Charge # Bond: Charge #



Type:          Type:



Returnable Court Date:



Release Date:



Returnable Court Date:



Release Time:



Releasing Officer:



ADULTS ONLY!!
Hold for First Appearance
DO NOT BOND



Bond 
Type:
1. R.O.R.
2. Cash



3.Surety
4. Bail/
     Bond



5. Cert.
6. Other
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SEMINOLE COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
 



Professional Standards Division 
Professional Conduct Review Section 



 
Administrative Investigation 



 
 
 



DATE: March 25, 2016 
  



SUBJECT: Deputy Sheriff Michael O’Connor 



COMPLAINANT: Sheriff Donald F. Eslinger 



CASE NUMBER: PC-16-0003 



INVESTIGATOR: Captain Mark Conway 



   
BASIS FOR INVESTIGATION: 
 
On March 18, 2016, Chief Assistant State Attorney Stacey Solmons contacted Captain Mark 
Conway of the Professional Standards Division and indicated she was in possession of an in-car 
video recording that depicted a Seminole County Deputy Sheriff punching a handcuffed suspect in 
the face while in the back seat area of a patrol car.   
 
The video recording was from the back seat area of Deputy Sheriff Giovanni Medina’s patrol vehicle.  
The recording was captured on January 12, 2016, in reference to Sheriff’s Office case number 
201600000284.  The video captured Deputy Sheriff Michael O’Connor punching Jonathan Lynch 
in the face.  When Lynch was punched, he was handcuffed with his hands behind his back and was 
secured in the back seat of Medina’s patrol vehicle.  There was no indication in the Sheriff’s Office 
Offense Report that any force was used against Lynch and no Response to Resistance Report was 
completed. (Investigative Notes)   
 
 
ALLEGED VIOLATIONS: 
 
General Order #1, XI.B.1. Knowledge of and Obedience to Laws and Sheriff’s Office Directives - 
Employees shall observe and obey all local ordinances, state and federal laws. 
 
General Order #1, XI.F.2. Conduct Toward the Public – Employees shall treat victims, witnesses, 
suspects, prisoners and other persons with respect. 
 
General Order #49, II. Response to Resistance, Scope – Only that degree of force reasonably 
necessary to accomplish lawful objectives, and not to use force against any person or animal except 
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when necessary, is authorized for purposes of self-defense, in defense of another, to overcome 
physical resistance to arrest, to prevent the escape of an arrested person, or to restore order in the 
correctional facility. 
 
General Order #49, XI.A.2. Post Action Procedures Following Less-Lethal Response Incidents – 
Less than lethal actions where a Deputy’s Response Level is #3 or greater, requires the action to be 
documented on a Response to Resistance Report.  
 



INVESTIGATIVE SUMMARY: 
  
On March 21, 2016, Sheriff Donald F. Eslinger authorized and directed an administrative and 
criminal investigation related to the allegations of misconduct on the part of Deputy Sheriff Michael 
O’Connor.  O’Connor was placed on paid administrative suspension pending the outcome of the 
investigations.  (Section I) NOTE:  O’Connor was not scheduled to work between March 18, 
2016, and March 21, 2016.  (Investigative Notes)  The criminal investigation was assigned to 
Sergeant Christie Register of the Major Crimes Unit and documented under Sheriff’s Office Offense 
Report 201600002140. 
 



Sheriff’s Office Event Report #20160120129 
 
A review of Sheriff’s Office Event Report #20160120129, dated January 12, 2016, was conducted.  
(Section III).  The following relevant items were noted: 
 
01:07:48 – Call received 
01:08:38 – Call dispatched 
01:12:10 – Deputies arrived 
04:18:58 – Call cleared 
 
Location:  1213 Phillip Street [Winter Springs] 
 
Final Event Type:  Family Disturbance in Progress Routine [22FIR] 
 
Assigned Units:  Deputy Sheriff Giovanni Medina [P5512], Alert 1 [Sheriff’s Office helicopter], 
Deputy Sheriff Amanda Lyonnais [P4414], Deputy Sheriff Michael O’Connor [P2514]. 
 
Disposition Codes:  A1 [Felony arrest], A2/2 [2 misdemeanor arrests],
 
Relevant Remarks: 
 
01:07:58 – Open Line w/ [with] no response 
01:10:00 – LL [land line] with male 
01:10:09 – Compls [complainant’s] son S48 [battered] the mother 
01:10:11 – Upgrade response [from routine to priority] 
01:10:13 – Physical [disturbance] 
01:10:15 – Subjs [subjects] ran outside 
01:10:46 – Neg [negative] S00 [armed] / subj[ect] is Jonathan Lynch 25 Yoa [years of age] 190 lbs. 
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01:11:41 – Both parties S02 [intoxicated], both started the S33 [fight] before running 
01:12:10 – P4414 [Lyonnais] arrived on scene 
01:15:51 – Alert 1 enroute 
01:15:59 – Alert 1 arrived on scene 
01:16:28 – P5512 [Medina] arrived on scene 
01:37:15 – P5512 [Medina] is 1025 [in contact] 
01:37:59 – Alert 1 cleared the call 
01:45:28 – P2514 [O’Connor] enroute 
01:45:32 – Req[uest] another unit 
01:46:02 – Routine response 
01:49:11 – P2514 [O’Connor] arrived 
02:05:13 – P5512 [Medina] enroute to the jail 
 
 



Sheriff’s Office Offense and Arrest Report 201600000284 
 
A review of Sheriff’s Office Offense and Arrest Report 201600000284 was conducted.  (Section IV)  
The report was completed by Medina and documented an incident that occurred on January 12, 2016, 
at 1213 Phillip Street.  The arrest report documents the probable cause to charge Jonathan Lynch 
with Simple Battery – Domestic, in violation of F.S.S. 784.03, and resisting an officer without 
violence, in violation of F.S.S. 843.02.  The narrative completed by Medina documents information 
he received from Daniel Lynch [father] regarding a physical altercation that occurred between Karen 
Lynch [mother] and Jonathan Lynch [son].  According to the report, Daniel Lynch awoke to Karen 
Lynch “screaming for help.”  Daniel Lynch observed Karen Lynch bleeding from her mouth and 
Jonathan Lynch yelling at her.  Upon telling Karen and Jonathan Lynch that he [Daniel Lynch] was 
calling law enforcement, both Karen and Jonathan Lynch ran out of the residence. 
 
Medina wrote that upon arriving at the residence, “I observed the kitchen chairs knocked over and  
a large amount of alcohol spilled on the kitchen ground.  I also observed a large amount of blood, on 
the kitchen door handle, consistent with Daniel’s account of the incident.”  Medina ultimately located 
Karen Lynch and Jonathan Lynch hiding in an old Jacuzzi.  Karen Lynch complied with Medina’s 
commands to “show me their hands;” however, Jonathan Lynch refused.  Jonathan Lynch was 
ultimately removed from the Jacuzzi and secured in handcuffs by Medina.   
 
Medina noted that Jonathan Lynch was “aggressive and argumentative” and he was pulling away 
from Medina when being escorted to his patrol car.  Medina indicated that Jonathan Lynch 
“continued to kick the door of my patrol vehicle.”  The remainder of the report documents Karen 
Lynch’s account of the events and Medina’s decision to place Jonathan Lynch under arrest. 
 
Lyonnais also completed a narrative documenting her involvement in the investigation.  Her 
narrative was consistent with Medina’s account of the events.  Lyonnais’ narrative also documented 
her decision to place Karen Lynch into protective custody  
 
NOTE:  Sheriff’s Office Report 201600000284 does not contain a narrative from O’Connor 
and the narratives completed by Medina and Lyonnais do not document anything that 
occurred between O’Connor and Jonathan Lynch. 
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Sheriff’s Office Offense and Arrest Report 201600000286 
 
A review of Sheriff’s Office Offense and Arrest Report 201600000286 was conducted.  (Section V).  
The report was completed by Medina and documented the fact that at the time of his arrest, Jonathan 
Lynch, was on felony probation with the Florida Department of Corrections.  The report documents 
Medina’s decision to charge Jonathan Lynch with violation of probation.   
 
NOTE:  Sheriff’s Office Report 201600000286 does not contain a narrative from O’Connor 
and there is no mention of anything that occurred between O’Connor and Jonathan Lynch. 
 
 



Sheriff’s Office CIT Intelligence Report 2016IT000118 
 
A review of Sheriff’s Office CIT Intelligence Report 2016IT000118 was conducted.  (Section VI).  
The report was completed by Lyonnais and the narrative is consistent with her narrative in case 
number 201600000284.  The report documents Lyonnais reasons for placing Karen Lynch into 
protective custody 
 
NOTE:  Sheriff’s Office Report 2016IT000118 does not contain a narrative from O’Connor 
and there is no mention of anything that occurred between O’Connor and Jonathan Lynch. 
 
 



Deputy Sheriff Giovanni Medina In-Car Video Recording 
 
The in-car video recording assigned to Medina’s patrol vehicle was reviewed.  The relevant events 
are summarized below: 
 
01:11:45 The video starts. 



 
01:19:01 Medina arrived on scene and exits his vehicle. 



 
01:23:08 Medina enters his vehicle and begins driving. 



 
 [The video depicts Medina driving around in an apparent effort to locate 



Jonathan and Karen Lynch] 
 



01:35:05 Medina arrives back at the residence and exits his vehicle. 
 



01:39:40 The voice of Jonathan Lynch can be heard saying, “What a piece of shit,” in the back 
seat; however, the video is not displayed. 
 



01:39:55 Medina starts his vehicle which activates the video recording in the back seat.  
Jonathan Lynch is visible seated in the back seat. 
 



 NOTE:  Throughout the video Jonathan Lynch exhibits mood swings, uses 
profanity, and talks to himself. 
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01:43:55 Jonathan Lynch begins kicking the back door of Medina’s patrol car. 
 



01:44:22 Jonathan Lynch stops kicking. 
 



01:44:28 Jonathan Lynch yells, “You piece of fucking shit.” 
 



01:44:41 Medina opens the window and asks Jonathan Lynch why he is “banging on my car.”  
Jonathan Lynch denies doing that and Medina says, “Okay,” and rolls up the window. 
 



01:44:52 Jonathan Lynch begins kicking the back door. 
 



01:44:58 Jonathan Lynch stops kicking the back door. 
 



01:45:00 Jonathan Lynch says, “You’re a fucking asshole, Medina mother fucker.” 
 



01:45:07 Jonathan Lynch says, “Fuck you.”  NOTE:  Medina can be heard requesting 
another deputy for assistance over the radio. 
 



01:45:10 Jonathan Lynch begins screaming and yelling profanity at Medina. 
 



01:48:25 Jonathan Lynch begins kicking the back door. 
 



01:48:35 Jonathan Lynch stops kicking the back door and begins to scream profanity. 
 



 NOTE:  CAD Records indicate O’Connor arrived on scene at 01:49:11 
 



01:49:23 Jonathan Lynch says, “Look at this guy, he looks hard, you look hard, you look hard 
as fuck, you want to fight, let’s take the handcuffs off we’ll fight fist to fist bitch.” 
 



01:49:34 Jonathan Lynch says, “You come around looking all hard, let’s do something.” 
 



01:49:39 Jonathan Lynch says, “You guys are some real pussies, arresting drug addicts and 
criminals.” 
 



01:49:53 Jonathan Lynch begins to kick the back door. 
 



01:49:57 Jonathan Lynch stops kicking the door. 
 



01:50:16 Jonathan Lynch says, “You guys are real pussies man.”  Medina says, “Yeah, Yeah.” 
   



01:50:32 Jonathan Lynch says to Medina, “Pussy, bitch,” while Medina is retrieving something 
from the front seat of his patrol car. 
 



01:50:38 Medina is visible walking away from his patrol car. 
 



01:51:42 Jonathan Lynch begins kicking the back door. 
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01:51:57 O’Connor can be heard saying, “Hey,” and Jonathan Lynch stops kicking the door.  
O’Connor tells him to stop kicking the door.  Jonathan Lynch asks O’Connor to get 
him some water.  O’Connor tells him, “I’ll see what I can do.”  Jonathan Lynch says, 
“If you can get me some water I’ll stop, please, I’m real thirsty, please.”  O’Connor 
tells him to stop kicking the door and Jonathan Lynch continues to ask for water.   
 



01:52:38 Medina is visible on the front camera and then walks away from the patrol car. 
 



01:53:32 Jonathan Lynch begins kicking the back door.   
 



01:53:37 Jonathan Lynch stops kicking the door and says, “Where’s the water at then dude.”  
O’Connor tells him to “chill out,” and Jonathan Lynch replies by saying, “Where’s the 
water?”  O’Connor again says, “Chill out.”   
 



01:53:44 Jonathan Lynch begins kicking the door. 
 



01:53:48 The rear driver door can be heard opening and Lynch says, “Get me water, mother 
fucker.” 
 



01:53:49 O’Connor reaches in and grabs the front of Jonathan Lynch’s shirt pulling his upper 
body down towards the seat.   
 



01:53:52 O’Connor says in a whispered voice, “Chill the fuck out, I’m going to fucking kill you 
right now you understand.”  Jonathan Lynch replies, “Where’s the water, I want 
water.” 
 



01:53:57 O’Connor shoves Jonathan Lynch, by placing his left hand on Jonathan Lynch’s face, 
upward and back towards the passenger side door with his left hand.  O’Connor moves 
into the vehicle and punches Jonathan Lynch in the face with his right fist.  NOTE:  
O’Connor lets out an audible grunt consistent with someone attempting to apply 
added power to a punch.  Jonathan Lynch’s head moves to his right, consistent with 
O’Connor’s punch.  O’Connor releases Jonathan Lynch and exits the vehicle.  
Jonathan Lynch begins to kick towards O’Connor.  NOTE:  Jonathan Lynch only 
began to kick towards O’Connor after being punched, not before. 
 



01:54:04 The car door is closed. 
 



01:54:08 Jonathan Lynch says, “You will lose, you will lose in this fight unless you Taze me.”  
He continues to ask O’Connor for water.  O’Connor tells him, “No, not now.”  
O’Connor and Jonathan Lynch continue to have a conversation about the water.  
Jonathan Lynch apologizes to O’Connor and promises to stop kicking the door.  
O’Connor tells him if he can sit quietly for ten minutes he will get him water. 
 



01:54:57 The unmarked vehicle driven by Lieutenant Al Strickland arrives on scene. 
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01:59:08 O’Connor provides Jonathan Lynch with water by pouring it into his mouth.  Jonathan 
Lynch thanks O’Connor and says, “You are amazing.”  O’Connor makes Jonathan 
Lynch promise to stop kicking the door. 
 



02:00:00 Jonathan Lynch starts yelling at his mother saying, “Mom, don’t testify against me.” 
 



02:02:48 Jonathan Lynch begins kicking the back door telling the deputies to let his mother go.  
He continues to use profanity towards the deputies. 
 



02:03:29 Medina is seen walking back towards his patrol car. 
 



02:03:30 Medina has a conversation with Jonathan Lynch where he tells him they are only 
taking his mother to South Seminole Hospital. 
 



02:04:41 Medina departs the scene to transport Jonathan Lynch to the correctional facility. 
 



02:10:20 Medina arrives at the correctional facility. 
 



 NOTE:  During the drive to the correctional facility, Jonathan Lynch never tells 
Medina that he was punched by O’Connor. 
 



02:40:17 The video stops. 
 
 



Deputy Sheriff Michael O’Connor’s In-Car Video Recording 
 
The in-car video recording assigned to O’Connor’s patrol vehicle was reviewed.  The relevant events 
are summarized below: 
 
01:49:12 The video starts 



NOTE:  O’Connor’s vehicle is parked behind Medina’s vehicle. 
 



01:49:18 O’Connor approaches Medina who is standing near the front of his [Medina’s] vehicle. 
 



01:49:32 The microphone on O’Connor’s body begins transmitting to his in-car video recorder. 
 



01:49:59 Jonathan Lynch can be heard kicking the door of Medina’s vehicle. 
 



01:50:13 Medina retrieves something from the trunk of his vehicle.  Jonathan Lynch tells 
Medina he is a “pussy,” and Medina responds by saying, “Yeah, yeah.” 
 



01:50:30 Media retrieves an item from his passenger compartment and then walks away from 
his vehicle.  NOTE:  Medina goes to Jonathan Lynch’s driveway and appears to 
be too far away to hear anything that transpires between O’Connor and Jonathan 
Lynch. 
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01:51:46 Jonathan Lynch can be heard kicking the door. 
 



01:51:57 O’Connor stands outside of Medina’s vehicle and says to Jonathan Lynch, “Hey man, 
hey, chill, okay, chill, stop kicking the doors,” and, “You need some water, okay, I’ll 
see what I can do for you.” 
 



01:52:18 Medina returns, gets something from the trunk of his car, and then walks back towards 
the residence. 
 



01:53:38 Jonathan Lynch can be heard kicking the door. 
 



01:53:43 O’Connor says to Jonathan Lynch, “Hey man, chill out.”  Jonathan Lynch continues 
to kick the door. 
 



01:53:48 O’Connor opens the rear driver’s side door of Medina’s vehicle.  He can be seen 
reaching into the vehicle and then he whispers to Jonathan Lynch, “Chill the fuck out, 
I will fucking kill you right now, do you understand.”  This is followed by sounds of a 
struggle and then O’Connor reaches farther into the vehicle and is heard grunting. 
 



01:54:07 O’Connor exits the vehicle and slams the door shut. 
 



01:54:52 Lieutenant Al Strickland arrives on scene and sits in his vehicle next do Medina’s 
vehicle.   
 



01:55:14 O’Connor approaches Strickland and says, “What’s up LT [Lieutenant],” and, “Well 
you know it’s one of those things.” 
 



01:55:28 O’Connor mutes the microphone on his belt transmitter. 
 



01:59:17 O’Connor brings a bottle of water from Strickland’s vehicle to Jonathan Lynch.  
O’Connor opens the back door of Medina’s vehicle to give the water to Jonathan 
Lynch. 
 



02:03:26 Medina is visible towards the front of his vehicle and O’Connor walks away from 
Strickland towards Medina. 
 



02:03:41 Medina returns to his vehicle and appears to have a conversation with Strickland. 
 



02:04:18 Medina gets into the driver’s seat of his car. 
 



02:04:39 Medina drives away from the scene. 
02:07:33 Strickland drives away from the scene. 



 
02:08:35 The video stops as Lyonnais begins to drive away from the scene. 
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Review of In-Car Video Auditing Records 
 
On February 24, 2016, Assistant State Attorney Olivia Yergey sent a written request to the Sheriff’s 
Office to be provided with “COPIES OF ANY BODY CAMERA VIDEOS OR IN CAR CAMERA 
VIDOES ASSOCIATED WITH THIS INCIDENT.”  The same day Sheriff’s Office Client 
Specialist Dave Weir processed the request and provided Yergey with copies of the in-car video 
recordings from Medina and O’Connor’s vehicles.  (Section VIII)  NOTE:  There was no video 
recorded by Lyonnais.  (Investigative Notes) 
 
The audit of O’Connor and Medina’s in-car video revealed no one had viewed the video prior to this 
investigation commencing.  The records documented Weir burning a copy of the video on February 
24, 2016.  (Section IX)   
 
 



Jonathan Lynch Interview #1 
 
On March 21, 2016, Sergeant Christie Register conducted a recorded interview with Jonathan Lynch 
at the John E. Polk Correctional Facility.  (Section XI)  The following is a summary of the interview: 
 
During the interview, Jonathan Lynch, said he was pushed back and punched by a deputy 
[O’Connor] in the patrol car.  Jonathan Lynch said he kicked the deputy off of him and then the 
deputy slammed the door.  Jonathan Lynch did not recall anything being said to him by the deputy.  
During the interview, Jonathan Lynch incorrectly identified Medina as the deputy who punched him 
in the face.  Register let Jonathan Lynch know that the incident was recorded on video and that the 
deputy who arrested him [Medina] was not the same deputy who punched him [O’Connor].  Jonathan 
Lynch waivered back and forth during the interview on whether or not he wanted to press charges 
against O’Connor.  Ultimately, Jonathan Lynch asked Register to give him a few days to think about 
whether or not he wanted to press charges.  Jonathan Lynch told Register that he was concerned with 
pressing charges because he did not want to see O’Connor lose his job.  Register explained to 
Jonathan Lynch that his decision to prosecute would not effect O’Connor’s employment because a 
seperate administrative investigation was going to be conducted that would deal with O’Connor’s 
employment.  Jonathan Lynch told Register that he told his parents and the judge at first appearance 
about being punched by O’Connor. 
 
 



First Appearance Video Recording 
 
On January 12, 2016, Jonathan Lynch attended First Appearance at the Correctional Facility.  
(Section XII)  Judge Debra Krause presided over the proceedings.  A review of the video revealed 
that Jonathan Lynch said to Judge Krause, “Your honor, I just want to say something, when I was in 
the back seat of this officer’s patrol car, handcuffed, he opened, the door, punched me in the face, 
and closed the door.  I know there is a video camera of that whole thing, so the integrity of this officer 
who wrote this report should be in question.”  NOTE:  Medina was the author of the two arrest 
reports and O’Connor was the deputy who punched Jonathan Lynch.  Judge Krause responded 
by saying, “Okay.”  There was no further discussion concerning Jonathan Lynch’s accusation. 
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Recorded jail phone call between Jonathan Lynch and Daniel Lynch and Karen Lynch 
 



On January 19, 2016, Jonathan Lynch called Daniel Lynch and Karen Lynch on a recorded telephone 
line from the correctional facility.  (Section XIII)  During the telephone call Jonathan Lynch said to 
Karen Lynch, “The cop beat my ass too.”   
 
 



Deputy Sheriff Amanda Lyonnais Interview 
 
On March 21, 2016, Sergeant Christie Register conducted a recorded interview of Deputy Sheriff 
Amanda Lyonnais at the Sheriff’s Administration Building.  (Section XIV)  The following is a 
summary of the interview: 
 
Lyonnais told Register about her involvement in the investigation at Jonathan Lynch’s residence on 
January 12, 2016.  Lyonnais said she and Medina ultimately located Karen Lynch and Jonathan 
Lynch hiding under a Jacuzzi.  Lyonnais said Karen Lynch complied with their commands and was 
secured in handcuffs.  Lyonnais said Jonathan Lynch was not compliant and had to be removed from 
the Jacuzzi.  Lyonnais said O’Connor arrived on scene when they were escorting Jonathan Lynch to 
Medina’s patrol car.  Lyonnais said they briefed O’Connor on what had occurred prior to his arrival.  
Lyonnais said Jonathan Lynch was being loud and belligerent when he was in the back of the patrol 
car and she heard O’Connor yell at him to be quiet.   
 
Lyonnais said O’Connor never asked for any assistance to apply a hobble to Jonathan Lynch.  
NOTE:  A hobble is used to secure the legs of a prisoner who is posing a danger to themselves 
or is causing damage to a Sheriff’s Office vehicle.  She said O’Connor never informed her that he 
used force on Jonathan Lynch.  Lyonnais said she never heard about O’Connor punching Jonathan 
Lynch.  Lyonnais did not believe a Response to Resistance Report was completed.   
 
 



Deputy Sheriff Giovanni Medina Interview 
 
On March 22, 2016, Sergeant Christie Register conducted a recorded interview of Deputy Sheriff 
Giovanni Medina at the Sheriff’s Administration Building.  (Section XV)  The following is a 
summary of the interview: 
 
During the interview Medina gave Register an explanation of his involvement in the investigation at 
Jonathan Lynch’s residence on January 12, 2016.  Medina said he instructed O’Connor to stand by 
his patrol vehicle while he [Medina] completed domestic violence paperwork.  Medina said no 
Response to Resistance Report was generated as a result of the investigation.  Medina said he told 
O’Connor to contact him if Jonathan Lynch started to bang his head “or things got worse” so they 
could apply a hobble restraint.  Medina said O’Connor never contacted him about putting Jonathan 
Lynch in a hobble restraint.  Medina said O’Connor never informed him that he had used force on 
Jonathan Lynch.  Medina said O’Connor never made a claim that Jonathan Lynch had kicked or 
battered him [O’Connor].  Medina said O’Connor never told him that he had punched or battered 
Jonathan Lynch.  Medina incorrectly believed that O’Connor did not have the ability to access his 
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vehicle.  Medina said he has never had any subsequent conversations with O’Connor concerning 
anything that transpired between him [O’Connor] and Jonathan Lynch.   
 
 



Jonathan Lynch Interview #2 
 
On March 23, 2016, Sergeant Christie Register conducted a recorded interview with Jonathan Lynch 
at the John E. Polk Correctional Facility.  (Section XVI)  The following is a summary of the 
interview: 
 
During the interview, Jonathan Lynch said that O’Connor punched him with a closed fist in his 
mouth area.  Jonathan Lynch said he did not sustain any injuries as a result of O’Connor punching 
him.  Jonathan Lynch said O’Connor did not have permission to punch him the face.  Jonathan Lynch 
said he did want to prosecute O’Connor.  Jonathan Lynch completed an Affidavit of Prosecution. 
(Section XVII)   
 
NOTE:  On March 23, 2016, O’Connor’s attorney, Dave Webster, met Register and viewed 
the video recordings.  Webster told Register that O’Connor would not be participating in an 
interview for the criminal investigation, but would be interviewed for the administrative 
investigation.   As a result of O’Connor’s decision not to be interviewed, the administrative 
investigation commenced.  (Investigative Notes)  
 
 



Lieutenant Al Strickland Interview 
 
On March 23, 2016, Manager Tom Johnson conducted a recorded interview of Lieutenant Al 
Strickland at 1311 Via Prima Way, Lake Mary.  (Section XVIII)  The following is a summary of the 
interview: 
 
According to Strickland, he was working as a watch commander on January 12, 2016.  He recalled 
responding to the investigation at Jonathan Lynch’s residence.  Strickland believed he was only on 
scene for approximately ten minutes.  Strickland said when he arrived on scene he spoke with 
O’Connor.  Strickland said O’Connor told him that Jonathan Lynch was “being violent inside the 
vehicle.”  Strickland said Jonathan Lynch was being loud and he could tell he was drunk.  Strickland 
said O’Connor never told him that he used any kind of force on Jonathan Lynch.  Strickland said 
O’Connor never told him that Jonathan Lynch had battered him.  Strickland said O’Connor did not 
report being injured to him.  Strickland said no Response to Resistance Report or First Report of 
Injury Report was completed as a result of this incident.    
 
Strickland said the procedure to prevent a prisoner from kicking in the back seat of a patrol car is for 
two deputies to apply a leg restraint [hobble] to the prisoner’s legs.   
 
Strickland said he did not believe he had any conversation with Jonathan Lynch.   
On March 23, 2016, O’Connor was contacted by Captain Mark Conway and his administrative 
interview was scheduled for March 25, 2016, at 0900 hours. 
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On March 23, 2016, Sergeant Tom Clem and Sergeant Mark Stanley were contacted and indicated 
they were working on January 12, 2016, and were never notified by O’Connor that he had used force 
on Jonathan Lynch.  (Investigative Notes) 
 
On March 24, 2016, O’Connor resigned from his position as a Deputy Sheriff effective immediately 
and indicated he would not be participating in the administrative interview.  (Section XIX) 
 
NOTE:  O’Connor was found to have violated the following written directives during a 
separate Administrative Investigation [PC-15-0019] which concluded on August 20, 2015, and 
resulted in O’Connor receiving a 172-hour suspension without pay: 
 
General Order #1, XI.F.3. Conduct Towards the Public 
Enforcement Policy and Procedure #E-49, III.B. In-Car Video/Audio Recording 
Enforcement Policy and Procedure #E-9, XI.A. Domestic Violence Documentation 
 
 



CONCLUSIONS: 
 
Following an investigation by the Professional Conduct Review Section, the allegations have been 
assigned the following findings based upon the legal standard of preponderance of the evidence: 
 
General Order #1, XI.B.1. Knowledge of and Obedience to Laws and Sheriff’s Office Directives, is 
assigned a finding of SUSTAINED.  The following statements support this finding: 
 



1. On January 12, 2016, Deputy Sheriff Michael O’Connor was captured on in-car 
video recording intentionally striking Jonathan Lynch by punching him in the face. 
 



2. The recording captured that Lynch was handcuffed behind his back and posed no 
danger to O’Connor.   
 



3. During a recorded interview with Lynch, he said that O’Connor punched him against 
his will and he wished to have O’Connor prosecuted for the offense of battery. 



 
4. O’Connor violated Florida State Statute 784.03, Battery, a misdemeanor of the first 



degree, by actually and intentionally striking Jonathan Lynch against his will. 
 



General Order #1, XI.F.2. Conduct Toward the Public, is assigned a finding of SUSTAINED.  The 
following statements support this finding: 
 



1. On January 12, 2016, Deputy Sheriff Michael O’Connor was recorded on video 
saying to Jonathan Lynch, “Chill the fuck out, I’m going to fucking kill you right 
now you understand.”   
 



2. After making that statement to Lynch, O’Connor punched Lynch in the face. 
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General Order #49, II. Response to Resistance, Scope, is assigned a finding of SUSTAINED.  The 
following statements support this finding: 
 



1. On January 12, 2016, Deputy Sheriff Michael O’Connor used force on Jonathan 
Lynch by striking him in the face. 



2. At the time, Lynch was handcuffed behind his back, secured in a patrol car, and was 
not exhibiting any level of resistance towards O’Connor. 
 



3. At the time, Lynch was not a danger to himself or others. 
 



4. O’Connor used Level #5 – Incapacitating Force by striking Lynch in his face with a 
closed fist. 



 
General Order #49, XI.A.2. Post Action Procedures Following Less-Lethal Response Incidents, is 
assigned a finding of SUSTAINED.  The following statements support this finding. 
 



1. On January 12, 2016, Deputy Sheriff Michael O’Connor used force on Jonathan 
Lynch by striking him in the face. 
 



2. O’Connor did not complete a Response to Resistance Report or notify a supervisor 
of his actions. 



 
3. According to Lieutenant Al Strickland, who arrived on scene within a minute of 



O’Connor using force, O’Connor never notified him that he had used force. 
 



 



RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
No recommendations are offered pursuant to this investigation. 
 
 
INDEX: 
 



COMPLAINANT: 
 
  Sheriff Donald F. Eslinger 
 
  Address: 100 Bush Boulevard 
    Sanford, Florida 32773     
 
  Telephone: (407) 665-6600 
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SUBJECT: 
 
  Deputy Sheriff Michael O’Connor  
 
  Address: 100 Bush Boulevard 
    Sanford, Florida 32773 
 
  Telephone: (407) 665-6600 
WITNESSES: 
 
 1. Jonathan Lynch  
 
  Address: 1213 Phillip Street 
    Winter Springs, Florida 32708 
 
  Telephone: (407) 927-0297 
 
 2. Lieutenant Al Strickland 
 3. Deputy Sheriff Giovanni Medina 
 4. Deputy Sheriff Amanda Lyonnais  
 
  Address: 100 Bush Boulevard 
    Sanford, Florida 32773 
 
  Telephone: (407) 665-6600 
 
 
EVIDENCE: 
 
 Digital Recordings: 
 
 AF-01 Recorded telephone call of Jonathan Lynch, dated 01/19/2016. 
 AF-02 Recorded interview of Jonathan Lynch, dated 03/21/2016. 
 AF-03 Recorded interview of Deputy Sheriff Amanda Lyonnais, dated 03/21/2016. 
 AF-04 Recorded interview of Deputy Sheriff Giovanni Medina, dated 03/22/2016. 
 AF-05 Recorded interview of Jonathan Lynch, dated 03/23/2016. 
 AF-06 Recorded interview of Lieutenant Al Strickland, dated 03/23/2016. 
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Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have read the foregoing report and that the facts 
stated in it are true to the best of my knowledge and belief. 



I, the undersigned, do hereby swear, under penalty of perjury, that, to the best of my personal 
knowledge, information, and belief, I have not knowingly or willfully deprived, or allowed 
another to deprive, the subject(s) of the investigation of any rights contained in ss. 112.532 
and 112.533, Florida Statutes . 



.,."""''"



1'Hl"•,, SJY L. JACKSON (~~~;\ MY CCWMISSION t FF 955464 
~. l:E EXPIRES: April 25, 2020 
~tnr:f.\· ~: Bonded Thru Notary Public Underwriters 
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Press packet_O'Connor/O'Connor criminal investigation incident report.pdf




Reported Day/Date:



Tue 1/12/2016 1:08



Time Dispatched:



1/12/2016 1:08



Time Arrived: Time Completed: Date Occurred From: Date Occurred To:



1/12/2016 1:12 1/12/2016 04:18 Tue 1/12/2016 1:08 Tue 1/12/2016 4:00



Subdivision:



Incident Address:



1213 PHILLIP ST  WINTER SPRINGS FL 32708



Forced Entry:



N/A
Occupancy: Type of Weapon: Location Type:



Occupied HANDS/FEET/FIST MOTOR VEHICLE
Municipality:



WS  
Dispatch Address:



1213 PHILLIP ST  WINTER SPRINGS FL 32708
#Offenses: #Victims: #Offenders: #Prem. Ent: #Arrested: Drug Related: Alcohol Related: Call Disposition: Signal Code: Clearance:



01 01 01 0 00 N N A1 A2 BA 22FIR   Transferred to 
SAO (Capias)



OFFENSES SECTION



Off# Description Statute# UCR Ordinance
Attempt/
Commit Warrant # DVR Drug Activity



1 BATTERY-TOUCH OR STRIKE 784.03  1a1 130B No C             No N/A
Drug Type: N/A    



PROPERTY



Qty:
Model:
Status: Case Evidence/Seized



Units:    
Brand:         



Details: DVD
Owner#:                     



Evidence Tag:CR1



Item#:1 Offense#: 1
0 Serial#:                    



         Size:     Color:    
Damage: Recovered Date: 



Property Narrative: DVD- Video Files



Est Value: $0.00



$0.00



YDVD      



Rec. Value:



NCIC:
Theft Type:



Owner: *OWNER NOT ENTERED*



PCN: NIC:



PERSON SECTION



R/S: W/M DOB: 9/19/1990 or Age:  
A
VICTIM- ADULT
1213 PHILLIP ST  WINTER SPRINGS, FL 32708 Phone: 



                         



Name: LYNCH, JONATHAN  



Person Type:
Address:



Job:



Offense Indicator: 1
SSN:  Hgt:Adult/Juvenile:



City of Birth: CHICAGO
511 Wgt: 203 Hair: BLONDE Eyes: BLUE DL#: DL State: FL



Place of Birth: IL



Email:
NONE          



Cell Phone:
OthPhone1:



NOK:
NOK Address:



4079270297 OthPhone2:
 NOK:  
 NOK Phone:  



Emp. Address: Bus. Phone:               
Comments:



VI
C



/W
IT



Relationship:  
Foul Play Suspected:



Extent of Injuries:
False
None



Injury 1:
Injury 2:



R/S: W/M DOB: or Age:  
A
SUSPECT



Phone: 



                         



Name: O`CONNOR, MICHAEL ANDREW 



Person Type:
Address:



Job:



Offense Indicator: 1
SSN:  Hgt:Adult/Juvenile:



City of Birth:
508 Wgt:    Hair: Eyes: DL#: DL State: FL



Place of Birth: FL



Email:
              



Cell Phone:
OthPhone1:



NOK:
NOK Address:



OthPhone2:
 NOK:  
 NOK Phone:  



Emp. Address: Bus. Phone:               
Comments:



SU
SP



EC
T Relationship: OBTS#: FBI#:          



State#:           Local#:         Misc Id:                Other Id:
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Qty:
Model:
Status: Case Evidence/Seized



Units:    
Brand:         



Details: DVD
Owner#:                     



Evidence Tag:CR2



Item#:2 Offense#: 1
0 Serial#:                    



         Size:     Color:    
Damage: Recovered Date: 



Property Narrative: DVD- Interviews, Photographs, supporting case documents



Est Value: $0.00



$0.00



YDVD      



Rec. Value:



NCIC:
Theft Type:



Owner: *OWNER NOT ENTERED*



PCN: NIC:



NARRATIVES
Rpt Date: 03/24/2016 16:46 Reporter: Register, Christie                  107116 Clearance: Transferred to 



SAO (Capias)
Nar Type: O



Mod By: SCSO\cregiste                               Mod Date: 03/24/2016 17:43 Related Case #
On Monday, March 22, 2016 I, Sergeant Christie Register, was assigned a criminal investigation involving Seminole County Deputy 
Sheriff Michael O’Connor (W/M, DOB: .



On Thursday, March 17, 2016 Assistant State Attorney Olivia Yergey was reviewing in car camera footage in reference to domestic 
violence battery case 201600000284. While reviewing the video footage; ASA Yergey stated she observed an unknown Deputy 
Sheriff strike an arrestee (Jonathan Lynch, W/M, DOB: 09/19/1990) in the face. At the time of the incident Jonathan Lynch was 
secured with his arms behind him in handcuffs and located in the rear seat of a marked patrol vehicle. ASA Yergey then showed 
the video to her supervisor, Tom Briggmann. On Friday, March 18, 2016 Stacey Salmons reviewed the video and forwarded the 
information to the Seminole County Sheriff’s Office Professional Standards Division.



Captain Mark Conway of the Professional Standards Division provided me with several video clips of the alleged incident as well 
as several documents to include the original case file for the incident leading to this encounter. 



On January 12, 2016 at approximately 0112 hours Seminole County Deputy Sheriff Giovanni Medina, Amber Lyonnais, and Michael 
O’Connor responded to 1213 Phillip Street, Winter Springs, within unincorporated Seminole County, Florida in reference to a 
domestic disturbance. As a result of their investigation; Jonathan Lynch was arrested and placed into the back of Deputy 
Medina’s patrol vehicle. Jonathan appeared to be intoxicated and was uncooperative at the time of his arrest. Deputy Medina and 
Deputy Lyonnaise continued to speak with other parties involved in the incident as well as complete appropriate paperwork. 
Deputy M. O’Connor stood outside Deputy Medina’s patrol vehicle to observe Jonathan Lynch.  



A video file was downloaded from the rear seat camera located in Deputy Medina’s marked patrol vehicle (car #83). The file was 
then saved as “Medina Full”, “Medina Short”, and “Medina Slow”. A review of “Medina Full” revealed the arrestee, Jonathan 
Lynch, to be very agitated. He yelled profanities at the deputies on scene as well as kicked the door panels on several occasions 
in order to gain their attention.  Deputy M. O’Connor spoke with Jonathan through the window asking him to stop kicking the door. 
Jonathan then denies kicking the door and asks for water. Jonathan continues to kick the door panels in the back seat of the 
patrol vehicle. The video portion documented 1/12/16 01:53:47 shows Deputy M. O’Connor open the driver’s side, rear patrol 
vehicle door, grab Jonathan by the shirt and pull him down and towards him. Deputy M. O’Connor is heard on audio saying, “I’m 
going to fucking kill you right now do you understand.” Deputy M. O’Connor then pushes Jonathan backwards with his left hand 
on Jonathan’s face and then strikes Jonathan in the face with his right fist. Deputy M. O’Connor makes contact on the lower left 
jaw/mouth area forcing Jonathan’s head to veer to the right. 



An outside view of the incident can also be viewed on the video file labeled “O’Connor”.  Deputy M. O’Connor’s vehicle was 
parked directly behind Deputy Medina’s vehicle. Deputy M. O’Connor’s in-car camera captured the incident at 1/12/16 01:53:52. 
Approximately one minute later an unmarked vehicle driven by Lt. Al Strickland pulls up next to Deputy Medina’s vehicle. Deputy 
M. O’Connor begins speaking with Lt. Strickland and all audio is turned off at 01:55:29.



Deputy Giovanni Medina can be identified in the video wearing an issued Seminole County Sheriff’s Office green, long sleeve 
uniform. Deputy Michael O’Connor is seen wearing the same uniform however has a black jacket with the wording “Sheriff” written 
on the back. 



On March 21, 2016 at approximately 1236 hours I met with Jonathan Lynch at the John E. Polk Correctional Facility (JEPCF). I 
asked if Jonathan could recall an encounter he had with a deputy in the back of a patrol car on January 12, 2016. Jonathan stated, 
“I called him some names and said that you know basically called him a pussy and I was kicking the door and he opened the door 
and punched me in the face while I was in handcuffs.” Jonathan then stated he kicked the deputy off of him and he then slammed 
the door shut. Jonathan described the deputy as bald, shorter, slender, and possibly Hispanic or Italian in appearance. Jonathan 
recalls an unmarked silver Explorer pull up next to the patrol car shortly after. He then stated after the incident the deputies were 
really nice to him and provided him with water. Jonathan stated he did not recall any statements made by the deputy at the time of 
the incident. Jonathan was under the belief that Deputy Giovanni Medina was who hit him at the time. He described him punching 
with his left arm and pushing him back with the right, however, he demonstrated the opposite (which would have been consistent 
with the video). He stated he told the Judge at first appearance what happened as well as his family. Jonathan requested I return 
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ADMINISTRATIVE SECTION



Was Crime Scene Processed: No Processed By:                                           
Officer Reporting: 107116 Register, Christie                 



Reviewed By: 196004 PERGOLA, MARK STEPHEN          
    



Assigned To: 107116 Register, Christie                 
Clearance:



Comments:
Transferred to SAO (Capias)
SIMPLE BATTERY



Officer Shift:  
Review Date:



Assigned Date:



Clearance Date:



03/28/2016
03/21/2016



03/28/2016



Section: WLL  Unit: Date: 01/12/2016P5512
Routed to:



Assigned Dept:
Referred To:



                                          



MAJCR     
                                          



so he could decide if he wanted to pursue criminal charges.



A review of Jonathan Lynch’s booking photo taken the morning of the incident did not reveal any injuries or marks.



On March 21, 2016 at approximately 1855 hours I met with Deputy Amanda Lyonnais at 100 Bush Boulevard in Sanford, Florida. 
Deputy Lyonnais provided a digitally recorded sworn statement. She explained her involvement in the domestic incident occurring 
on January 12, 2016 at 1213 Phillip Street in Winter Springs, FL. Deputy Lyonnais was interviewing Karen Lynch in the driveway of 
their residence at the time of the battery. She stated she could hear muffled yells coming from Jonathan Lynch as well as the 
patrol vehicle moving as Jonathan became more agitated. Deputy Lyonnais stated she was unaware of there ever being a use of 
force. She stated Deputy M. O’Connor never mentioned being in physical contact with Jonathan. 



March 21, 2016 at approximately 1948 hours I met Lieutenant Al Strickland in a parking lot at the intersection of SR 434 and SR 600. 
Lt. Strickland did not remember any details of the original incident on January 12, 2016 at 1213 Phillip Street in Winter Springs, FL. 
He stated Deputy M. O’Connor spoke with him at his driver’s window and was talking about the arrestee kicking the door panels. 
Lt. Strickland believes he gave Deputy M. O’Connor a bottle of water to give Jonathan. Lt. Strickland was never made aware of a 
use of force nor did Deputy M. O’Connor ever mention being in physical contact with Jonathan.



On March 22, 2016 at approximately 1439 hours I met with Deputy Giovanni Medina at 100 Bush Boulevard in Sanford, Florida. 
Deputy Medina provided a digitally recorded sworn statement. He explained his involvement in the domestic incident occurring on 
January 12, 2016 at 1213 Phillip Street in Winter Springs, FL. Deputy Medina was interviewing Daniel Lynch inside their residence 
at the time of the battery. Deputy Medina was unable to see or hear anything that occurred at the vehicle, however, he did instruct 
Deputy M. O’Connor to notify him if a hobble restraint was necessary due to Jonathan’s agitated state. Deputy Medina stated he 
was unaware of any use of force nor did Deputy M. O’Connor ever mention being in physical contact with Jonathan.



March 22, 2016 at 1540 hours I spoke with Deputy Michael O’Connor. He stated he had retained an attorney and would not be 
providing a statement for the criminal investigation at this time.



On March 22, 2016 I reviewed jail phone calls made by Jonathan Lynch. On January 19, 2016 Jonathan spoke with his parents 
Daniel and Karen Lynch. While speaking with his mother, Karen; Jonathan states, “the cop beat my ass too so I understand.” This 
can be heard at 1427 hours on the recording. I then reviewed a copy of the video footage from Judge Krause’s first appearance on 
January 12, 2016 at 1434. At approximately 00:27 on the recording Jonathan Lynch states: “when I was in the back seat of this 
officer’s patrol car, handcuffed, he opened the door, punched me in the face, closed the door…”



On March 23, 2016 at 1020 hours I met again with Jonathan Lynch at JEPCF. Jonathan provided a sworn digitally recorded 
statement that he wishes to prosecute Michael O’Connor for battery. He clarified his statement that he was struck by Deputy M. 
O’Connor in the mouth area with a closed fist, but did not sustain any injury. Jonathan stated he did not give Deputy M. O’Connor 
consent to touch him in this manner even though he was provoking him. Jonathan signed an affidavit of prosecution. 



A copy of the video files was placed on a DVD and into evidence as CR1. A copy of the interviews, photographs, and supporting 
documents was placed on a DVD and into evidence as CR2.



Based on the aforementioned investigation it is believed on January 12, 2016 at approximately 0153 hours Michael Andrew 
O’Connor (W/M, DOB: 04/24/88) did violate Florida Statute 784.03 (1A1) simple battery when he struck Jonathan Lynch (W/M, DOB: 
09/19/1990) in the face. This case is being forwarded to the Office of the State Attorney for their review.



I swear/affirm the above statements are true and correct:
Officer's Signature:



Sworn to and subscribed before me, the undersigned



authority, this _________ day of ___________________, in the year__________________



Register, Christie                  107116
Name and Employee # (Printed)



Name/Title of Person Authorized to Administer Oath.



________________________________________________________________
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